Bentwood boxes
Bentwood boxes


Bentwood boxes are on display inside some of the houses, in front of certain poles and in the exhibit Tsimshian Prehistory. Bentwood boxes were made in all sizes, and were used to store food, clothing and many household and ceremonial items. Some were painted and others were elaborately carved, but the majority were left undecorated. Contemporary artists have revived the art of making bentwood boxes. 

These boxes demonstrate the remarkable carpentry of the West Coast people. The sides were made from a single plank of cedar; it was bevelled or kerfed to allow the four sides to be bent into a box shape. After careful shaping of the plank, it was steamed, bent and sewn together using cedar roots or wooden pegs. The base was prepared so that the edges fitted snugly into the bottom, creating a watertight box. A lid was then added. 
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(A) tool for bending the wood 
(B) box in process of being bent 
(C) sides lashed and sewn together 
(D) box, top and bottom 
(E) completed bentwood boxes


(illustration by Irvine Scalplock)





This bentwood box was made by the Bella Bella and later acquired (probably through trade) by the Haida. The carved and painted designs show Bear and Whale. 
Canoes

The Haida canoe

Canoes were the main means of transporting goods and people up and down the coast. Their shape and size varied from one region to the next, each having a unique and distinctive design. 



This 16.5-metre canoe could take 5 tonnes of cargo and needed a crew of 10 paddlers and a steersman. It was equipped with three masts and sails that helped increase its speed when the wind was blowing. It is made from a single, large red-cedar log that was skilfully dug out, steamed, shaped, carved and painted to produce an elegant, efficient, seaworthy craft. 
Alfred and Robert Davidson built the canoe near Masset in 1908. It was painted by Charles Edenshaw, the renowned Haida artist (1839-1924). At the bow are two mythical Sea Wolves -- part Wolf, part Killer Whale. 
Dugout canoes, chopped and carved out of tree-trunks, have been used at one time or another by many of Canada’s First Peoples. However, it was on the Pacific Coast, where builders had access to giant red cedars, that dugouts were developed to their highest levels of performance and beauty. Dugouts from this area have displayed considerable variations in style as well as in size, ranging from small fishing and sealing craft to large seagoing vessels that carried whalers beyond the sight of land. Although dugouts were largely replaced by motorized plank boats in the early twentieth century, many First Peoples of the Pacific Coast now use them in cultural festivals. 
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Dugout Canoe Construction

Before metal tools were readily available, First Peoples often hollowed out dugouts by burning them with controlled fires and then removing the charred wood with an adze. Another technique was to chop notches across the inside width of the canoe and then split out the wood between the notches, repeating the whole process until the desired depth was achieved. In more recent times, chain-saws have been used to eliminate the laborious chopping of notches as well as to rough out the exterior shape of the hull. Seagoing canoes of the Pacific Coast were often widened through soaking the hull with hot water and spreading the gunwales apart. 
	



	Unfinished West Coast-style dugout canoe
Port Renfrew, British Columbia
CMC VII-F-945 


Construction stages
1. Taking down the bottom surface with an axe. 
2. Levelling and smoothing the bottom of the hull with an adze. 
3. Removing wood from the interior with a double-bladed axe. 
4. Dressing the interior with a cooper’s adze. 
5. Smoothing the interior with a curved drawknife. 
6. Shaping the sides of the separate bow head. 
7. Fitting the head to the bow. 
8. Sanding the inside of the canoe. 
	


	Paddles were sometimes decorated with painted figures


Pacific Coast Dugouts -- "Northern" Style

Several of the Pacific Coast tribes who live between the northern end of Vancouver Island and the south coast of Alaska have used these Northern- or Haida-style dugout canoes. Their distinctive profile displays a strong curvature in the gunwales, which rise to high, truncated projections at both ends. In cross-section, they are rounded on the bottom and have sides that flare out below the gunwales. These extremely seaworthy canoes are sometimes decorated with painted figures. 
	



	Northern-style dugout canoe with painted figures on interior of hull and top of thwarts
Probably from Bella Bella, British Columbia, ca. 1900
CMC VII-B-1192 

	



	Northern-style dugout canoe with painted figures on prow and stern
Probably from Queen Charlotte Islands, British Columbia, late nineteenth century
CMC VII-B-1126


Pacific Coast Dugouts -- "West Coast" Style

West Coast-style dugout canoes were most commonly used on Vancouver Island. The graceful bow of this canoe, carved to suggest the head of an animal, sweeps upwards in a gentle curve from the bottom of the flattened hull to the prow. The stern is nearly vertical and is capped with a small, elevated platform. West Coast-style canoes are well designed for travel on the open sea. 
	



	West Coast-style dugout canoe
Duncan, British Columbia, 1929
CMC VII-G-346 

	



	West Coast-style dugout canoe
Possibly from Vancouver Island, British Columbia, ca. 1900
CMC VII-F-916 

	



	Dugout canoe, recently made, with rudimentary stem and stern forms
suggestive of traditional West Coast styles
Main builder: John Wallace
Cultus Lake, British Columbia, 1969
CMC VII-G-683


Pacific Coast Dugouts -- "Coast Salish" Style

Coast Salish-style dugout canoes were common in the Strait of Georgia, Puget Sound, and on the lower Fraser River. These canoes have long, truncated ends that are more horizontal than those on the somewhat similar Northern style canoes. The prow is often deeply notched just below a distinctive band that is carved along the length of the gunwales. 
	



	Coast Salish-style dugout canoe
Duncan, British Columbia, 1929
CMC VII-G-352 


	 
	kayaks |  umiaks |  bark canoes |  dugout canoes


Pacific Coast Dugouts -- Models

	



	Model of a West Coast sealing canoe.
The carved figure in the bow represents the harpooner
ca. 1893
CMC VII-F-311 

	



	Model of a West Coast dugout
with canoe and figures all carved from a single block of wood
CMC VII-F-936 

	



	Model of a West Coast sealing canoe with mast and sail
ca. 1900
CMC VII-F-637


War Canoes

The Haida were known as raiders -- "Vikings of the North Pacific" -- and were feared in villages from Sitka, Alaska to northern California. 
Haida artist Bill Reid created a 15-metre red cedar war canoe for Expo 86 in Vancouver. He named it Lootaas, or Wave Eater. His dugout has been paddled up the Seine River to Paris, as well as to the Queen Charlotte Islands, where it is now kept at the village of Skidegate. 



This fibreglass canoe, named Red Raven was moulded from the hull of Lootaas. Bill Reid designed its sails and paddles. Raven, Eagle and Thunderbird are depicted on the sails. The grizzly bear on the prow and the beaver on the stern are additions that were collected on the islands by Israel W. Powell, British Columbia’s first Indian Commissioner, in 1879; such figures were added for ceremonial occasions and removed when the canoe had to be stripped for battle. 
	


	


	




Black Eagle, a sister canoe to Red Raven, is operated by the Canadian Museum of Civilization every summer on the Ottawa River. It is shown above participating in an historical re-enactment (August 1996) of the encounter between the Lady Washington,, one of the earliest American trading vessels to come to the waters of the Queen Charlotte Islands, and the Kunghit Haida of the village of Ninstints, a warlike people. Although the first visit of the Lady Washington resulted in amicable trade, when the ship returned later in 1789 hostility grew between the Haida and the white traders. Pilfering of minor items from the ship led to a violent and irrational reaction. The captain ordered two chiefs seized and he held them as hostages. To avenge their humiliation, the Ninstints chiefs led raids on passing ships. The last attack was in 1795 on the ship Union under Captain John Boit, who recorded that:
	"Above 40 Canoes Came into the Cove, full of Indians, at least 300 men. I immediately suspected by their manoeuvres that they meant to attack the Union.... the war Canoes kept pressing alongside, & the Indians getting upon the Nettings.... the Indians alongside attempted to board, with the most hideous yells." 



A cedar canoe of this type, built in 1908, is displayed in the Grand Hall. The canoe was built for the Seattle Exposition. 
	As it was being towed by steamer from Masset, across the Hecate Strait to Prince Rupert, a storm blew up, breaking the tow-line. The Haida man and his wife who were in the canoe hoisted the sails and the canoe glided along on top of the waves at great speed. When the steamer arrived at Prince Rupert harbour, the captain was surprised to see the canoe already tied up at the dock. The canoe managed to outstrip the steamer, a clear demonstration of the canoe's excellent design that allowed it to navigate the high seas without losing speed.
taken from:
Nancy Ruddell, Raven's Village
(Canadian Museum of Civilization, 1995). 


Clothing
Button Blankets

	


	Trade blanket decorated with a human figure; Haida; probably acquired at Kasaan village, Alaska, ca. 1900, by George T. Emmons for the Lord Bossom collection; wool, dentalium shells, abalone shell, trade buttons. 
CMC VII-B-1525
The button blanket, which came into use after European contact, has now become the most popular piece of contemporary feast attire among the people of the north coast - the Haida, Tsimshian, Tlingit and Nisga'a. At first, crest designs decorated with dentalium shells were sewn onto wool blankets acquired from maritime fur traders and later the Hudson's Bay company. By the middle of the nineteenth century, the favoured blanket was made of blue duffle, with the designs appliquéd in red stroud. Squares of abalone shell were sewn to the eyes and joints of the crest figures to reflect bits of light as the wearer danced around a fire. When pearl buttons obtained from fur traders came into use, they proliferated onto the formlines. Today, buttons are sometimes used to fill entire zones of the design elements and even the whole field of the background. 

	


	Dark blue trade blanket with the design of a double-headed Eagle appliquéd on it; Haida; Lord Bossom collection, ca. 1900; wool, dentalium shells, abalone shell, mother-of-pearl. CMC VII-B-1521
A modern potlatch can bring forward a hundred or more button blankets from the participants. At a traditional naming ceremony, it is now considered essential to present the recipient with a special blanket decorated with a family crest. A century after the button blanket was first developed, it has become a symbol of social and artistic rebirth among the Haida. One Kaigani Haida artist, Dorothy Grant, has initiated a fashion house specializing in appliquéd clothing that she labels "Feastwear". 




Chilkat Blankets

	


	CMC VII-A-235 

Chilkat blankets were woven from mountain goat wool and cedar bark. They were the specialty of the Chilkat tribe of the Tlingit, whose territory was at the mouth of the Chilkat River in southeast Alaska. This group refined the style to its highest level in the late nineteenth century, but it had initially been developed among the Tsimshian-speaking people who lived along the Skeena and Nass Rivers on the mainland and had easy access to mountain goats in their hunting territories. 

	


	CMC VII-A-132 

Early explorers like Captain James Cook collected cedar bark capes decorated with small amounts of goat's wool; not until the early nineteenth century did full Chilkat-style blankets appear in collections. 



	


	CMC VII-C-2099 

Another popular item of clothing in the late nineteenth century was a cloth tunic with a single crest on the front and sometimes another crest on the back. The most prestigious kind was the woven Chilkat tunic, which probably preceded the cloth one. The Chilkat tunic, like the blanket, was a specialty of the Tlingit. 


Clothing of Tsimshian Nobles

	


	Tsimshian society was divided into three classes: nobles, commoners and slaves. Wealth was reflected in the clothing and personal adornments worn by the chiefs, their wives and children. Nobles wore elaborate headdresses and helmets with crest images carved or painted on them. Their ceremonial clothing included woven Chilkat blankets, aprons and leggings. Following the introduction of European woollen cloth, a new type of clothing was made from dark blue trade blankets, decorated with red flannel crest designs and pearl buttons. 

This mannequin of a chief is wearing a wool button blanket over his shoulders, a leather shirt, a painted leather apron with deer hoofs attached to the fringes, and leggings. He is holding a Raven rattle. On his head is a headdress depicting Nagunaks, the keeper of souls in the underworld; his face has the features of Bear and his red hands may reflect the fact that he held the souls of the dead until they were ready to be reincarnated in humans. The chief's black mask with taunting white eyes was part of a ceremonial dance costume. 

	


	Everyone wore personal adornments, although what people could wear was regulated by daily activity and social rank. Chiefs and their wives and children wore bracelets, labrets (lip plugs), earrings, pendants, and elaborately decorated clothing, as symbols of spiritual power and prestige. 

This mannequin depicts a noble woman wearing a Wolf helmet, a Chilkat blanket and tunic, and a labret in her lower lip. 


Painted woven hats

	


	Haida; collected at Masset in 1911 by C. C. Perry; cedar bark.
CMC VII-B-899
Early engravings by Russian artists depict north coast chiefs wearing woven hats painted with formline crest designs at the period of first contact. Haida women excelled in basketry, making not only woven hats but baskets and mats; hats were woven on a stand with a wooden form appropriate to each size and shape. Male artists painted the hats with the crests of the commissioning family; the colours of paint were restricted to red and black (with occasional touches of blue or green). 

	


	CMC VII-B-892 

In early historic times, Haida women also sold their hats to Europeans and Americans who were trading or travelling in Haida territory. Painted woven hats became a popular tourist item late in the nineteenth century, and a number of leading Haida artists of the era painted many wonderful examples. 

Isabella, the wife of Charles Edenshaw, was a very skilled hat weaver; she and her husband spent many winters producing painted hats for sale, including the example at top. The four-pointed star with bicoloured points is the signature of Charles Edenshaw. 




Frontlets

	


	This portrayal of the mythic Dogfish Woman is one of the finest examples of Haida frontlets from Skidegate village. It has a train of ermineskin, flicker feathers at the sides, and sea lion whiskers at the top; the eyes and joints are inset with abalone. Collected ca. 1898 by Charles F. Newcombe. CMC VII-B-1102 

Chiefs of all the tribes of the Pacific north coast possessed an array of regalia which denoted status. The full set of chiefly regalia consisted of a Chilkat blanket, leggings, an apron, Raven rattles (or a drum), and a frontlet. A chief was also likely to own a shield-shaped plate of native copper. 

All the north coast groups adopted the frontlet, but they each developed distinctive styles. The typical Tsimshian frontlet is a human figure with a head larger than its body and limbs, squeezed into a rectangular or dome-topped plaque that is surrounded by small human or crest animal figures. The frontlet of the Nisga'a of the Nass River has shallow rounded carving of the central human figure, with squares of abalone shell surrounding it. 

	


	Haida frontlet depicting a young woman, carved by Simeon Stiltla, collected at Masset before 1884 by Dr. William F. Tolmie. CMC VII-B-25 

The Tlingit frontlet has a more irregular pattern of small figures around the central figure, which is usually a crest animal rather than a human; the colours are more variable than the standard black and red used by the Haida, with a preference for green and grey. 

The Haida frontlet is mid-way between those of the Tsimshian and Tlingit, in that animal figures are common in the centre but human figures are not rare. The Haida carve the central figure in higher relief and outline its eyes with a black line. Haida frontlet plaques are as often round or oval as they are rectangular. 

	


	This Haida frontlet represents the Moon. The abalone inlays on the face and rim of the Moon reflected firelight, while the flicker feathers served as an invocation to that bird to carry the chief's prayer's skyward. Probably acquired at Skidegate before 1899 by James Deans for the A. Aaronson collection. CMC VII-B-690 

The north coast frontlet embodies a complex cosmological message in which the dominate reference, conveyed both by the visual forms and by the materials used, relates to beings of the sea and the underworld. However, images of humans representing the middle world, and birds the upper world, are not excluded. The sea world and underworld references include the painted leather Whale tail that projects from the back and the sea lion whiskers on top that form the cage into which eagle down is placed. The flicker feathers that adorn the sides of the headpiece represent the role of messenger played by those birds, which are said to travel up and down the world tree. Similarly, the ermineskin train refers to the role that creature plays in marking the seasons through its changes of colour. The abalone shell, which comes from the sea, is thought to reflect the sky world. 


Copperts

Coppers

	


	This very large Haida copper shield (117 cm. high) once belonged to Albert Edward Edenshaw. He was a talented shield engraver and sold his decorated coppers as far south as the Fraser River. This copper portrays his female Grizzly Bear crest. Purchased from Mary Yaltatse of Masset in 1970. CMC VII-B-1595
Copper was the ultimate symbol of wealth among the native peoples of the Northwest Coast; like gold, it reflects the brilliance of the sun. According to Nuxalk legend, copper was given to the people by Tsonoqua, who received it from Qomoqua, the master of wealth who lives in a copper house at the bottom of the sea. According to Haida tradition, copper came from the territory of the Eyak people in the Copper River area of Alaska, where it occurs as pure nuggets in the river gravels. In the Prince Rupert harbour shell middens, the use of copper in the form of bracelets, pendants and tubes can be traced back more than 2,000 years, and thus appears to be an early feature of north coast trading and warfare. 

Throughout the coast, shields made of copper denoted the high rank of their owners and were exchanged at ever higher values between chiefs at potlatch feasts. Among the Kwakwaka'wakw, coppers were particularly associated with the distribution of wealth at weddings. The Haida used coppers as a marker and symbol of wealth, and some wealthy chiefs owned a dozen or more. A copper which belonged to Albert Edward Edenshaw was sold to a Tsimshian chief for eight slaves, one large cedar canoe, one hundred elkskins and eighty boxes of eulachon grease. After a chief's death, his coppers were often fastened on his memorial pole. 

	


	A large Haida copper decorated with a double-headed Eagle (not a traditional Haida crest but adopted from the Imperial Russian form of this bird, introduced by Russian fur traders in Alaska). Collected from Skedans before 1900 by Charles F. Newcombe.
On one level the copper represents the ancestors of the owner. It often has a face on the upper portion, and always has a horizontal and vertical line that form a T shape on the lower half -- this represents the backbone or skeleton of the ancestor or the figure depicted on the copper. At a potlatch, to demonstrate his wealth, a chief might give away or even break a copper. In this case, care was taken to keep the T lines intact because bones symbolize the substance from which new life begins in the cycle of reincarnation. This idea is evident in the myths of many indigenous cultures around the world: bones, the most durable part of our bodies, may house the human soul. 




Housing

Haida house models

	


	CMC VII-X-124 

Haida sculptures range from tall totem poles to the equally complex carved handles of horn spoons. This ability to express artistic concepts over a range of sizes and forms has attracted the admiration of art afficionados worldwide. 

Following the tragic depopulation of the late 1860s due to epidemics, and deculturation in the 1870s and 1880s, the monumental sculptural tradition was abandoned. Carvers miniaturized their production into models of houses and poles, tailoring their art to the tourist market. House models were a favourite souvenir of early tourists, and Haida carvers embellished them with every conceivable decoration. 

The Haida viewed the universe as a large house, with the sides being the four cardinal directions. Not a single complete original Haida dwelling survives, but there are historical photographs of about four hundred Haida houses in twenty-five villages, and nearly one hundred house models survive in museum collections. 

	


	Model of Monster House. Collected before 1914 by Thomas Deasey. 
CMC VII-B-1166 a-d 

One exquisite house model from Masset is a relatively authentic portrayal of Chief Wiah's Monster House, carved for Indian agent Thomas Deasey by Charles Edenshaw. As the historical photos show, that house did indeed have carved corner posts, as well as a large frontal pole depicting the flood story of Qingi, whose large bearlike figure sits atop both the model pole and the real pole. The Eagle, a crest of Wiah's, takes flight from Qingi's head. The actual house was the largest ever built by the Haida. 

	



	Model of Grizzly Bear's Mouth House. Acquired at Skidegate before 1900 for the Lord Bossom collection. CMC VII-B-1556

A model of Chief Giatlins' Grizzly Bear's Mouth House, one of the most unusual buildings in Skidegate, was made about 1890 by John Robson (a later Chief Giatlins), a leading Skidegate carver who inherited the house. It coincides closely with a photo of the house taken in 1878. The house was a six-beam structure in which the decoration was both carved and painted onto the thick vertical planks that were inserted into the gables of the housefront. The housefront was sculpted as well as painted, particularly the snout of the Bear, which protruded out quite a way from the painted portion. Two oval doorways were positioned at the corners of the Bear's mouth. The Eagles on the corner posts are crests that belonged to the owner's wife. 




Ceremonial Interior House Screen

	


	Tsimshian; Kitwankool (Skeena River), British Columbia. 
CMC VII-C-1130 a-d 

Painted wooden screens were used to separate a chief's compartment in a communal house or as a backdrop during ceremonial occasions. These wall partitions could be assembled in front of the chief's compartment to conceal dancers as they put on their costumes and prepared to perform. Ancestral or crest figures were painted on screens. 

In the case of this screen, the dragonfly is a decorative motif, not a crest, while the two men are crests of the clan Wudaxhayetes. Under the beak (which was added the last time the screen was used, c.1850) swansdown with red cedar bark was suspended. 


Woodworking and artefacts

Bentwood storage boxes

	


	Boxes were used by the peoples of the Northwest Coast to store food stuffs, clothing, regalia and ritual paraphernalia. Some boxes were simply made of bent sheets of cedar bark sewn at the bottom and base to provide disposable containers for trade items, while others were more substantial and durable bentwood boxes. 

Food storage boxes were usually not decorated, but occasionally one such as this Haida example was painted with the image of the Chief of the Seas, the being ultimately responsible for all of the other sea creatures that the Haida used for food. Their flesh was under its guardianship while in such a box. Collected at Masset ca. 1895 by Charles F. Newcombe. CMC VII-B-324 

Boxes destined to store important wealth objects were provided with a guardian spirit decoration in the form of supernatural marine beings and more familiar animals. They also had heavy plank lids. The "front" of a Haida box normally depicts Konankada (the Chief of the Undersea World), with fins as well as human hands, although the design variations are endless. 

	


	Haida burial chest with a Beaver crest, probably created by Charles Edenshaw. Collected by Harlan I. Smith in 1926 from a chief at the Gitksan village of Kitwanga on the Skeena River. 
CMC VII-C-1183 

Large bentwood chests, approximately the size of two storage boxes, were favoured by Haida chiefs to store and protect their regalia, particularly their costumes of Chilkat blankets or button blankets, aprons, leggings and frontlets. Important chiefs owned up to half a dozen such chests. After protecting the wealth of a chief during his lifetime, such a chest often became his burial box and the protector of his soul after death. 

	



	Burial chest; Haida; cedar; collected at Skedans in 1932 by Robert Bruce Inverarity. CMC VII-B-1881 

This exquisite bentwood burial chest is one of the finest in the collection of the Canadian Museum of Civilization. On the front panel, the hands are inlaid with separately carved faces. At each corner, the salmon trout head ovoids indicate the work of an exquisite craftsman. The circles around the eyes of the human face in the lower centre of the panel are the signature feature of an unknown artist whose work was widely traded on the north coast in the mid-nineteenth century. 


Pipe

	


	Haida; purchased from Douglas Ewing of New York City in 1976; wood and brass. CMC VII-B-1659 

Like other north coast peoples, the Haida believed that the souls of the deceased travelled first to the sky world in their cycle of reincarnation. Both prayers and souls could be helped on their journey by means of smoke rising from the central hearth of the house or by smoke rising from pipes. Prior to European contact, the Haida used local tobacco. Pipe smoking became strongly associated with the extraordinary powers initially attributed to Europeans, particularly firearms, which not only smoked but brought instant injury or death. Many early pipes were made from the walnut of gunstocks and parts of gun barrels in order to capture and transfer the power of guns to pipes. 

On this wooden pipe with a brass bowl, the design represents Raven (with another bird's head on its tail). 


Haida Secret Society Masks

	


	



	


	



	


	



	




	
	1. Secret society mask with face painting and copper inlay; it was probably made in the 1850s and extensively trimmed with fur to form a goatee, fringe beard and hairline, but only the leather that once held the fur remains. Collected at Masset before 1884 by Alexander McKenzie of the Hudson's Bay Company.
CMC VII-B-1554

2. This very fine mask made in the middle of the 19th century once had a moustache and goatee made of bear fur. Collected on Haida Gwaii (probably Skidegate) in 1879 by Israel W. Powell.
CMC VII-B-3

3. Secret society mask made by Simeon Stiltla (1833-1883). Raven feather patterns are painted around the mouth. Collected at Masset before 1884 by Alexander McKenzie of the Hudson's Bay Company.CMC VII-B-1

4. Portrait mask by Simeon Stiltla of an old woman wearing a large labret. Collected at Masset before 1884 by Alexander McKenzie of the Hudson's Bay Company. CMC VII-B-7

5. This mask represents a gagiid, someone who narrowly escaped drowning but whose flesh has changed colour from long exposure in cold water. Collected on Haida Gwaii in 1879 by Israel W. Powell. CMC VII-B-109

6. An unusual dance mask of a supernatural being whose identity is now lost. The lips are edged with copper and the beard is bear fur. A wig of human hair completes the eclectic effect. Collected on Haida Gwaii in 1879 by Israel W. Powell. CMC VII-B-10

7. Secret society dance mask portraying a Mosquito; nail holes at the top indicate it once had fur or feather attachments. Purchased from the A. Aaronson collection in 1899 but probably acquired earlier at Masset by James Deans. CMC VII-B-704

Secular power in Haida society was wielded by the chiefs, who, unlike their Kwakwaka'wakw neighbours to the south, never yielded their power each winter to the heads of the secret societies. Nevertheless, by the mid-eighteenth century, the Haida began to practise much weaker forms of secret society winter dances, which they learned from captives taken in wars. They performed the dances at all winter festivities, including those to mark the raising of a totem pole or the building of a house. Secret societies and their performances began to disappear with the arrival of the missionaries in the mid-1870s. 

Among the Haida, masks were used mostly by members of the secret societies. Secret society dances frequently used both masks and puppets to represent wild spirits of the woods, which the Haida called gagiid. The Haida also employed masks in potlatch performances to illustrate the spirit beings encountered by their ancestors. 




Tsimshian Mask

	


	Collected by Israel Wood Powell in 1879 at Kitkatla, British Columbia, according to his rather confused records, but more likely at Port Simpson or other northern community; soapstone, painted with red and green pigments; 24 x 22.5 x 18.2 cm. CMC VII-C-329 

This stone mask has a twin residing in Paris in the Musée de l'Homme. Separated over one hundred years ago, the two masks were not reunited until 1975, when the Paris mask travelled to Canada to appear in an exhibition. It was then that the relationship between the two masks, expressions of the same face, was discovered. 

CMC's mask, without apertures for eyes, fits snugly over the Paris mask, with its round eyeholes. It is thought that the pair was worn in a naxnox performance, where an individual's personal power was displayed in dance. To present the illusion of the eyes actually opening and closing, the dancer must have turned quickly while removing the "blind" mask to reveal the one with eyeholes. The dancer would have needed considerable strength to hold the four-kilogram inner "sighted" mask in place with the wooden mouthpiece, although a harness attached through holes in the mask's rim might have helped support it. The "unsighted" mask may have been held in the hand, concealed by the dancer's costume. 

Since naxnox masks and other dance paraphernalia were kept hidden away when not in use, the audience would have thought that there was only one stone mask, and that it had the ability to open and close its eyes as some wooden transformation masks could do. 

William Duncan, the missionary who established Metlakatla, British Columbia, offered the sighted mask for sale in 1878, noting that it represented the "Thief". In Northwest Coast mythology, "Thief" refers to Raven, who is a culture hero of the Tsimshian. One of the Raven stories recounts how he stole the sun and then released it on the Nass River to illuminate what had been a totally dark world. The theatre of the mask may have emphasized the dramatic moment for humanity in the transition from unseeing to seeing. 


Raven Rattle

	


	Haida; collected on Haida Gwaii (probably Skidegate) in 1876 by Lord and Lady Dufferin. CMC VII-C-2149 

A standard accoutrement of a north coast chief was a pair of Raven rattles. Rattles such as this one were used by a chief in ceremonies. The different sounds and rhythms produced by a pair of rattles enhanced the drama of his oratory. 

The basic form is that of the Raven holding a small object in its beak, in reference to the myth of Raven bringing sunlight to mankind. On this rattle, the Raven supports a shaman initiate who is drawing inspiration and knowledge from the animal world through the link between his tongue and that of a mythical bird. On the Raven's breast is a flat design image of Konankada, Chief of the Undersea World. 




Spindle Whorl

	


	Salish; Vancouver Island, British Columbia; wood. CMC VII-G-6 

Salish women were considered virtually unrivalled in their ability to produce beautiful textiles that had social and spiritual significance. The ancient art of weaving Salish-style blankets was revived in the 1960s and it continues as a vibrant expression of cultural identity. 

Many Salish spindle whorls have sophisticated and powerful carved designs -- human, animal and geometric. The whorl was placed on a wooden spindle to add the weight needed to maintain the spinning motion, and to prevent the wool from falling off the rod as it was being spun. As the whorl turned, the designs would blur together, mesmerizing the spinner. This trance state was considered vital: it gave the spinner the ability to create textiles imbued with special powers. 





Haida gambling sticks

	


	This set of gambling sticks was kept in a painted deerskin bag. Collected at the Nass River village of Gitlaxdimiks in 1905 by Charles F. Newcombe. CMC VII-C-142 

The Haida had several popular games that involved gambling, and a lull in any social activity was a good reason to play. One game consisted of three sets of sticks, named after different animals or birds which were known only to the owner and his family. The sticks have rings and spiral markings to distinguish them, but the most elaborate sets are a veritable gallery of Haida art. 

	


	CMC VII-C-139 

The sticks were made of hard maple and were decorated by carving, painting and pyro-engraving with a hot poker; many were inlaid with abalone shell or copper. The drawings are difficult to appreciate at first glance, since they are completely wrapped around the sticks, which must be rotated slowly to unlock their form. Some have jumping shaman figures that resemble an animated cartoon; as the stick is rotated, one shaman after another jumps into view. Flying birds and jumping killer whales are also common. 




Argillite Carvings (Haida)

	


	



	


	



	


	



	


	



	


	



	


	




	
	1. Pipe (Raven, wolf, whale, bear and eagle). Collected by Andrew A. Aaronson, 1879. CMC VII-B-793

2. Pipe (Indian's head, Raven and feather motifs). Collected by Andrew A. Aaronson, 1889. CMC VII-B-817 

3. Pipe (crest figures and motifs from European images). Gift of George J. Rosengarten. CMC VII-B-1841 

4. Plate (whale design); abalone shell, whalebone inlay; attributed to Tom Price. Collected by Edward C. Counter. CMC VII-B-1552

5. Oval plate (shark design); abalone shell, ivory inlay; attributed to John Robson. Collected by Lord Bossom, 1900. CMC VII-B-1425

6. Oval plate (Wasgo or Sea Wolf design); Haida Gwaii; attributed to Tom Price. Collected by G.M. Dawson, 1885. CMC VII-B-760

7. Totem pole (chief, shark and grizzly); Haida Gwaii; attributed to Charles Edenshaw. Collected by Israel W. Powell, 1879. CMC VII-B-828 

8. Totem pole (grizzly bear, beaver, Raven's head and eagle); Haida Gwaii. Collected by Israel W. Powell, 1879. CMC VII-B-787 

9. Totem pole (crest figures and motifs from European images. Collected by S.H. Harris, ca.1870. CMC VII-X-306 

10. Sculpture (three bears and a man); Haida Gwaii. Collected by Lord Bossom, ca. 1900. CMC VII-B-1426 

11. Sculpture (medicine woman in full regalia); cedar bark neck ring; Haida Gwaii. Collected by Andrew A. Aaronson, ca. 1899. CMC VII-B-810

12. Sculpture (man, child, bear and frog); Haida Gwaii. Collected by Lord Bossom, ca. 1900. CMC VII-B-1438 

Argillite is a fine-grained black silt stone found in only one deposit, in Slatechuck Creek on Haida Gwaii (Queen Charlotte Islands). It was first carved by the Haida around 1800 to make pipes for tobacco rituals performed at funerals. Among the favourite images carved on the pipes were mythical heroes such as: the Raven and Bear; European ships and sailors; indigenous tobacco plants; and dragonflies and butterflies, which were believed to transport the souls of the deceased. 

Sailors from ships engaged in the maritime fur trade on Haida Gwaii, from the 1820s on, purchased argillite carvings as mementos to take home to New England and Europe. As the fur trade dwindled, the Haida developed a wide range of platters, cups and miniature totem poles embellished with crest designs that appealed strongly to Victorian tastes. 

In the late nineteenth century, the village of Skidegate produced famous argillite carvers such as Tom Price (Chief Ninstints), John Robson (Chief Giatlins) and John Cross. Masset was home to Charles Edenshaw (Chief Tahayren), the most famous argillite carver. In the nineteenth and early twentieth centuries, artists did not sign their works. Today, many argillite carvers carry on the tradition in both villages. 
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